## POLICE COMMITTEE **FRIDAY, 1 JUNE 2012**

# MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE POLICE COMMITTEE HELD AT **GUILDHALL, EC2 ON FRIDAY, 1 JUNE 2012 AT 10.45 AM**

#### Present

### **Members:**

Henry Pollard (Chairman)

Simon Duckworth (Deputy Chairman)

**Deputy Douglas Barrow** 

Mark Boleat

**Bob Duffield** 

Alderman Alison Gowman

**Brian Harris** 

Alderman Ian Luder

Helen Marshall

Deputy Joyce Nash

Don Randall

Deputy Richard Regan

#### Officers:

**Gregory Moore** - Town Clerk's Department Ignacio Falcon - Town Clerk's Department Steve Telling - Chamberlain's Department

Nagina Kayani - Equalities, Diversity and Human Rights Manager

Michael Cogher - Comptroller & City Solicitor

#### City of London Police

Adrian Leppard - Commissioner

Frank Armstrong - Assistant Commissioner

- Commander Ian Dyson

- Director of Corporate Services **Eric Nisbett** Hayley Williams - Secretariat Manager, CoLP - Commissioner's Staff Officer Theresa Russell

#### 1. **APOLOGIES**

Apologies for absence were received from Deputy Keith Knowles.

#### 2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF PERSONAL OR PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AT THIS **MEETING**

There were none.

#### 3a. MINUTES

The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 27 April 2012 were approved and agreed as a correct record.

#### **MATTERS ARISING**

- (1) Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCCs) The Chairman congratulated Mr Duckworth on his recent appointment as Chairman of the APCC Transition Board.
- (2) **Charity collections** (p7) The Chairman advised that he had asked for a report on the issue of "chugging" which would be coming to Committee in July.
- (3) **Integrity Inspection** (p10) Members were advised that HMIC would be conducted a second round of reviews, to ensure that the recommendations of the initial report were being implemented.

# 3b. PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS AND COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES

The public minutes and summary of the Professional Standards and Complains Sub Committee meeting held on 27 April 2012 were received.

#### 4a. **COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT UPDATE**

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner providing an update on recent community engagement activities, community priorities and forthcoming events.

The Deputy Chairman took the opportunity to thank the City of London Crime Prevention Association and its chairman, Don Randall, for all its work in liaising and working with the business community, with another Member commenting that they were aware a wide range of general engagement with the business community took place involving several partners which could be better expressed in the report.

Reference was made to the recent Central Residents Meeting and the issue of inconsiderate cycling in the City, with a Member suggesting that a regular update report on the issue along with the number of arrests made might be helpful so as to demonstrate that action was being taken. Members expressed the view that it was important to keep a balanced perspective on the issue, encouraging more considerate by pedestrians and motorists. The suggestion was made that informal guidance could perhaps be circulated to pedestrians to make it clear that a balanced approach was being taken to the issue.

The Lead Member for Public Order & Road Safety commented that she had seen a useful report on the issue at a meeting of the Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee and suggested that better liaison between the officers of that Sub-Committee and the City of London Police should be implemented so as to better synchronise targets and engage with the issue.

The Commissioner commented that it was important to recognise the increasing numbers of cyclists in City and the corresponding need to manage flow better, and advised that he would be happy to bring a regular report to Committee on a bi-annual basis updating Members on situation, with relevant statistics including the number of arrests made and fixed penalty notices issued.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its content noted.

#### 4b. **EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND HUMAN RIGHTS**

The Lead Member advised that good progress was being made in the area, with the EDHR Manager adding that the Action Plan was currently being finalised and should be completed shortly.

RECEIVED.

#### 5. **ICV ANNUAL REPORT**

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk updating Members on the progress of the City of London's Independent Custody Visiting (ICV) Scheme, presenting the Panel's Annual Report and informing Members of some of the recent issues raised by the ICV Panel in relation to custody provision in the City.

The Lead Member for the ICV Scheme expressed her thanks on behalf of the Committee to the Visitors, with it agreed that it would also be appropriate to send a letter of thanks to all the volunteers, in recognition of their efforts.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its content noted.

#### 6. STANDARDS REGIME UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011

The Committee considered a joint report of the Town Clerk and Comptroller & City Solicitor outlining the Government's changes to the Standards regime and proposing future arrangements for a revised Standards Committee.

A Member commented that the City Corporation should not be seeking to goldplate or over-engineer any new code.

RESOLVED: That, subject to the concurrence of the Policy & Resources Committee and Standards Committee, it be recommended to the Court of Common Council that:-

- (i) the City's existing code of conduct set out at Appendix 1 be adopted for the time being as the code of conduct to be effective once section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 comes into force:
- (ii) the revised constitution and terms of reference for the Standards Committee set out at Appendix 2 be adopted from the point that section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 comes into force; and
- (iii) three independent persons be appointed from the point that section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 comes into force.

#### 7. FEES AND CHARGES 2012/13

The Committee considered a report of the Commissioner seeking approval for the schedule of fees and charges for the financial year 2012/13. Explicit approval was also sought for the continued use of the same hourly charge rates for the private services of the Police as that calculated by the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS).

The Director of Corporate Services provided assurance to Members that the charges set out would cover the Force's costs.

#### RESOLVED: That:-

- Appendix 1 of the report be agreed, thereby giving explicit approval to the continued use of the hourly charge rates for the private services of the Police as calculated by the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS);
- Appendix 2 to the report be agreed, thereby implementing the schedule of rates for the provision of market non-competitive activities and agreeing to follow the MPS scale of charges for 2012/13; and,
- Appendix 3 in relation to miscellaneous Force fees and charges be agreed.

# 8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

#### 9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

There were no additional, urgent items of business for consideration.

#### 10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED--That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item No.	Exempt Paragraphs
11a	3
11b	1, 2 and 5
12	7
13	7
14	3
15	7

#### 11a. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

The Committee approved the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 27 April 2012.

# 11b. PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS AND COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES

The Committee received the non-public minutes of the Professional Standards and Complaints Sub Committee meeting held on 27 April 2012.

#### 12. COMMISSIONER'S UPDATES

The Commissioner of Police was heard concerning on-going and successful operations undertaken by the City of London Police.

### 13. OLYMPIC, PARALYMPIC GAMES AND DIAMOND JUBILEE UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner providing an update on preparations made to date with regards the Olympic and Paralympic Games and the various Diamond Jubilee events.

#### 14. CONSULTANCY SERVICES

The Committee considered a report of the Commissioner concerning the renewal of a contract relative to the provision of financial consultancy services as part of the City First Change Programme.

#### 15. PUBLIC ORDER: THREAT AND RISK FOR THE CITY OF LONDON

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner setting out the threat and policing of public order within the City of London, examining the level and type of threat, risk and harm for ceremonial and public safety events, and also for pre-planned and spontaneous protests.

16. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no urgent items.

### 18. **SENIOR OFFICER APPOINTMENTS**

A joint report of the Town Clerk and Commissioner was considered.

The meetin	g ended at 12.25pm
Chairman	

**Contact Officer: Gregory Moore** 

tel. no.: 020 7332 3113

gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk